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Mr P Winter 
Paul Winter & Co 
Fleet House 
8-12 New Bridge Street 
London 
EC4V 6AL              19502/A3/VB/ac 

 
7th December 2011  

Dear Mr Winter 
 
BARNET LDF MATTER 1 SPATIAL STRATEGY  
 
I write with regard to the above and further to the above Hearing Session and our subsequent 
discussions today.   
 
Through our Written Submissions and in response to Inspector’s questions yesterday, we confirmed 
that it is our position that the approach of Policy CS2 is unsound.  However, that our concerns 
could be addressed through a commitment within the wording of the policy to review the provisions 
of the adopted SPG 2005 and formulate a new SPG or appropriate policy document as necessary.  
The Inspector requested that the Council review this suggestion ahead of the Matter 9 Hearing 
Session tomorrow.    
 
You have requested clarity as to my position and have requested that we set out suggested 
wording that would address our concerns.  Specifically if I have understood our discussions, it is 
your position that: 
 
• The carrying over of the UDP Policies and SPG has been addressed through the Local 

Development Scheme and other legislative provisions and are not matters for consideration 
as part of the Core Strategy Examination.   
 

• There has not been a material change in circumstance since the adoption of the SPG in 
2005 to warrant a review.   
 

• Notwithstanding the above, that a review would not serve a meaningful purpose as there is 
an extant planning permission (the BXC permission) and only the former Parcelforce site at 
Geron Way is not the subject of an extant grant of planning permission.  

 
In my view there are two approaches that the Core Strategy can take in respect of Brent Cross 
Cricklewood area: 
 
1) If the Council are certain that the BXC permission will be the subject of timely 

implementation and will be completed in its entirety, and does not wish to make policy 
provision in any event, then there is no need for the Core Strategy to include any policy 



 
guidance and the site should be identified in the relevant housing and employment 
trajectories as a commitment.   

 
2) If the Council consider that a review of the BXC permission is likely or wishes to make policy 

provision for any review during the lifetime of the development plan then the Core Strategy 
should set out the policy context to guide any subsequent applications.  This policy should 
include a review of existing policy documents and their hierarchy and this should in turn be 
subject to SEA and SA testing as necessary. 

 
On the basis that the Council has chosen to include a policy drafted in the manner that it is, this 
would imply that the Council anticipates a review of the BXC Permission or at least a need to 
provide for such a review in policy.   
 
In terms of the existing policy context, the SPG 2005 was prepared in the context of the London 
Plan 2004.  The UDP was then adopted in 2006 pursuant to the planning regime prevailing at that 
time.  Policy CS2 cross refers to the saved policies of the UDP 2006 and the Development 
Framework SPG 2005 as the policy mechanisms to guide and determine new applications against, 
unless and until replaced by new DPD or SPD.  The decision as to whether to undertake a review 
will be informed by LDF monitoring and the monitoring of the implementation of the BXC 
permission. 
 
Our concern relates to whether the above approach is justified and whether it is based on a robust 
and credible evidence base and whether it is the most appropriate strategy when assessed against 
reasonable alternatives.   Moreover, whether the approach is flexible and therefore ‘effective’.   
 
I note the Council’s position regarding the UDP policies and SPG is a matter for the Local 
Development Scheme and other legislative provisions and is separate to the Core Strategy DPD.  
Whilst I do not comment on the lawfulness of the approach, that may well be for others at the 
appropriate time and place, on the basis that Policy CS2 expressly relies and effectively defers 
policy decisions to these documents then the Inspector must consider whether they are fit for 
purpose when he is considering the soundness of Policy CS2 and the Core Strategy DPD as a whole.  
Do they remain a valid and appropriate basis for policy? 
 
You have advised that in any event you do not consider there to be a material change in 
circumstance since the adoption of the SPG 2005 that would necessitate a review.  The issue here 
is that this review and assessment has not been undertaken as part of the evidence base for the 
Core Strategy DPD or subject to SEA testing.  Neither the Council nor the Inspector can therefore 
be certain as to the soundness of the suggested approach within Policy CS2.  Without any evidence 
of testing, your position is merely an assertion.   
 
My concern is that since the Adoption of the SPG there has been a material change of 
circumstance, specifically there are challenging market conditions,  public subsidy regimes have 
changed for affordable housing there have also been changed in policy such as the London Plan 
2011. 
 
We have suggested that our concerns in this regard could be addressed by an express policy 
commitment within Policy CS2 to undertake such a review of the SPG and formulate a new SPG or 
appropriate policy document as necessary.  If the Council is of the view that there has not been a 
material change in circumstance and that the submission of an application in the current market 
conditions would not be assessed differently then there is no harm in the Policy including this 
provision for review.   
 
As discussed, and as set out in our Written Submissions in respect of Matter 9, in our view there is 
a need for a different approach to Policy CS2.  As drafted it reads as a summary of the current 
position of the BXC permission rather than a policy framed to address a 15 year plan period. 
 
In our view if the Council decide to proceed with the second approach set out above, the Policy 
should be redrafted to stand alone of the extant planning permission and formally identify the site 



 
as a Strategic Location/Site.  It should also then set out the strategic policy objectives and growth 
targets that are to be achieved from the area and include the commitment to review the SPG or 
produce a new DPD as appropriate to provide the policy basis to determine any future planning 
applications against. 
 
You have requested suggesting wording to assist understanding our position.  To assist, I attach an 
extract from the LB Brent Core Strategy July 2010 in relation to the Wembley Opportunity Area.  
Like Brent Cross Cricklewood this area was the subject of Framework for Development Destination 
Wembley adopted as SPG September 2003, the UDP was Adopted January 2004 with a further 
Masterplan document prepared but not adopted as SPG in 2004.  Quintain, a major landowner, then 
secured planning permission in 2004 for the masterplan area and this was used as the basis to CPO 
sites within it.  Having already reviewed and adopted an updated SPD in 2009, the approach of the 
Core Strategy has been to set out the policy objectives for the area and a commitment (see para 
4.42) to review and consolidate guidance for the Wembley Area into an AAP.   
 
I would suggest that this is the approach that the Barnet CS should take.  
 
I trust that the above is of some assistance. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
VICTORIA BULLOCK 
Director 
 
cc: Programme Officer     Vijaya.Ram@barnet.gov.uk 
 
Enc. 
                                                                                                                                                   












